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PUBLIC POLICY 
OBJECTIVES

In line with international best practice, the 
Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) aims at 
meeting a number of objectives which include 
the following:
• Protecting small, less-fi nancially sophisticated 

depositors by providing an orderly means of 
compensation in the event of a deposit-taking 
institution becoming insolvent;

• Enhancing public confi dence and systemic 
stability by providing a framework for the 
resolution of failed banks;

• Enhancing competition in the fi nancial sector by 
mitigating some of the competitive barriers in the 
deposit-taking industry; and,

• Helping in defi ning the boundaries of the 
Government exposure and support in protecting 
depositors when a bank or the Corporation of 
banks fails in normal times. 

VISION 

Protecting depositors to contribute to financial 
system stability by 2021.

MISSION 

To protect deposits, enhance public confidence
and stability in the financial system by :

• promoting sound business practices; and 
• speedy resolution of failed contributory 

institutions.CORPORATE VALUES

• Accountability
• Fairness
• Teaming
• Integrity
• Excellence
• Transparency

CPD
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MESSAGE FROM THE 
CHAIRMAN

Mr. A. Moyo

MAJOR HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR

2018 2017

USD USD

Total Income 20 962 972                            15 077 969                         

Provision for 
protection 
payments

92 134 -

Cost to 
income ratio

19% 23%

Surplus for 
the year

17 009 705 11 566 466

Total assets 63 693 453 47 048 983

Accumulated 
Fund 

59 634 899 42 625 194

The DPC is a statutory body which derives its mandate 
from the Deposit Protection Corporation Act [Chapter 
24:29] enacted in March 2012. The Corporation was 
previously known as the Deposit Protection Board 
(DPB) and started operations on 1 July 2003. It was 
previously governed by Section XII of the Banking 
Act [Chapter 24:20] as well as the Banking (Deposit 
Protection) Regulations Statutory Instrument 29 of 
2003. 

Its main purpose is to build depositor confidence and 
foster stability in the country’s banking system, a 
function which complements efforts by the Reserve 
Bank of Zimbabwe and the Ministry of Finance.

The simmering inflationary pressures (42.09% as 
at December 2018) due to excessive money supply 
growth, shortages of foreign currency in the formal 
sector and cost-push factors.

During the year, the Corporation lost one of its 
esteemed board members, Mr. Moses Masasi who 
passed away on the 27th of April 2018. Mr. Masasi 
was appointed to the Board of DPC on the 15th of 
February 2017 and served for an effective 14 months.

The Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer, Mr. John 
Mafungei Chikura retired on the 31st of July 2018 in 
line with the Public Entities Corporate Governance 
Act (Chapter 10:31) which provides that contracts of 
employment for Chief Executive Officers who have 
served for 10 years or more shall not be renewed. 
Mr. Chikura joined the Corporation in July 2003 
and served the Corporation with distinction for 15 
years. The Corporation is where it is today due to 
his vision and excellent leadership qualities. We 
thank Mr J Chikura for his distinguished service to 
the Corporation.
  
Finally, let me take this opportunity to commend the 
Board of Directors, management and staff of the 
DPC for their loyalty and dedication to duty without 
which the achievements recorded during the period 
under review would not have been possible. I wish 
them success in their endeavours to meet their goals 
during the coming year.

Mr A. Moyo
CHAIRMAN

It gives me immense pleasure to present the eleventh 
Annual Report and Statement of Accounts of the Deposit 
Protection Corporation (DPC) for the twelve months to 31 
December 2018, the highlights of which are summarised 
below. The rest of the report will highlight major activities of 
the Board during the review period.
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The Deposit Protection Corporation is an active member of 
the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) and 
contribute to its activities. However, in 2018, the Corporation 
could not participate in some key workshops and programs 
due to foreign currency challenges. 

The Corporation managed to attend the Executive 
Council, Technical Committee Meetings and International 
Conferences in Basel, Moscow, Lagos and Taiwan. 
Venerable speakers and experts in deposit insurance grace 
these forums where members interact sharing knowledge 
and latest developments in deposit insurance, which are 
critical in modernizing and upgrading schemes to effectively 
contribute to financial stability and protect depositors. The 
Deposit Protection Corporation will continue to work closely 
with IADI and actively participate in its programs in order 
to continuously meet the public policy objectives. This 
also calls for continuous development in human capital 
through attending strategic deposit insurance workshops, 
conferences and courses.

Total income for the year increased by 39% from $15.1 
million in 2017 to $21.0 million in 2018. The year under 
review recorded a surplus of $17.0 million compared to 
$11.6 million achieved in 2018.

I wish to extend my sincere gratitude to Government, 
Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe, contributory institutions, 
depositors at large and the International Association of 
Deposit Insurers (IADI) for their unwavering support. I also 
want to extend my sincere thanks to all the members of 
the Deposit Protection Corporation Board of Directors, 
Management and staff for their invaluable sustentation.

Mike M. Chingosho
ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MESSAGE FROM THE 
ACTING CEO

Mr. Mike M. Chingosho

The economic environment was negatively affected by 
limited cash portfolio and foreign direct investment, tight 
fiscal space militating against capital expenditure by 
government, crisis of confidence in the banking sector, 
inflationary pressures, high budget deficit, unsustainable 
external and internal debt and shortages of hard currency 
in the formal system. 

The banking sector was characterised by liquidity 
challenges, low levels of loans to deposit ratio and backlog 
in foreign currency payments. Notwithstanding these 
challenges, banking sector accounts increased by 11.5% in 
2018 helping to advance the agenda of financial inclusion 
as the number include low maintenance cost accounts.  

The macroeconomic environment is expected to remain 
constrained in 2019, as there is a time lag before the 
measures announced by the Ministry of Finance and 
Economic Development and Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe 
start to yield positive results.

Inflation increased sharply from 3.46% in December 2017 to 
42.09% in December 2018 due to excessive money supply 
growth, shortages of foreign currency in the formal sector, 
cost-push factors and high parallel market rate premiums. 

The establishment of the Zimbabwe Asset Management 
Corporation (ZAMCO) in 2014 helped to improve asset 
quality in the banking sector from a peak of around 
20.45% in September 2016.  Notwithstanding the positive 
development, non-performing loans ratio remained above 
the international standard of 5% over the review period. 
The non-performing loan ratio deteriorated from 7% in 
December 2017 to 8% as at December 2018. 

Membership to the Deposit Protection Scheme increased 
under the review period from 25 contributory institutions in 
2017 to 27 in 2018. Two (2) deposit taking microfinance 
institutions namely, the Zimbabwe Women’s Microfinance 
Bank and Empower Bank became contributory institutions 
under the review period. The scheme now has six (6) 
Deposit-Taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs), one (1) 
Savings Bank, one (1) Infrastructure Development Bank, 
one (1) Merchant Bank, five (5) Building Societies and 
thirteen (13) Commercial Banks.  
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1. Membership and Scope of Coverage
In 2018, the Zimbabwe Women’s Microfinance Bank and EmpowerBank were incorporated into the 
Deposit Protection Scheme. This resulted in membership to the Deposit Protection Scheme increasing 
from twenty-five (25) to twenty-Seven (27). It is envisaged that the extension of membership to 
these institutions would further enhance depositor confidence and trust in the financial system, 
thereby promoting financial stability.
The architecture of membership to the Deposit Protection Scheme was as shown in the table 1 
below: 

Table 1: Membership to DPC Fund as at 31 December 2018

Members to the Deposit Protection Scheme are banking institutions registered under the auspices 
of the Banking Act [Chapter 24:20], Building Societies Act [Chapter 24:02], Microfinance Act 
[Chapter 24:29] for Deposit-Taking Microfinance Institutions [DTMFIs], Infrastructure Development 
Bank of Zimbabwe Act [Chapter 24:14] and People’s Own Savings Bank Act [Chapter 24:22]. 
Tetrad Investment Bank Limited was removed from Provisional Judicial Management and handed 
over to its board and management on 30 October 2018.

2. Deposit Protection Funding
During the year under review, premiums levied from member institutions remained the main source 
of funding for the Deposit Protection Corporation ‘s operations. Other funding sources included 
earnings from investments. The Corporation uses the flat rate premium assessment system to 
determine the insurance premiums payable by each contributory institution. The premium rate 
remained pegged at 0.2% of an institution’s annual average deposits, payable quarterly. Total 
assessed premium income for the year was $15.7 million, up by 33.1% from $11.8 million assessed 
for the comparative period in 2017. The increase in the premium income was mainly driven by the 
increase in the total deposit base.

3. Deposit Protection Coverage
3.1 Deposit Cover Level for Conventional Banking Institutions
In 2018, the maximum deposit protection cover for conventional banks remained at $1,000 per depositor per 
deposit class. At this cover level, 94.2% of the depositors’ accounts valued at $263.9 million were covered in 
full as reflected in the Table 2 below:

RISK ASSESSMENTS AND SURVEILLANCE

Number 
Commercial Banks 13 
Building Societies 5 
*Merchant Banks 1 
Savings Bank 1 
Infrastructure Development Bank  1 
Deposit-Taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs) 6 
Total 27 

Type of Institution 

*Not operating and is not taking deposits



- 12 -

DPC Annual Report 2018

The total number of depositor accounts was 3,441,231, up by 33.8% from 2,571,414 reported as at 
end of December 2017. The increase in the number of depositor accounts was due to aggressive 
marketing of low-cost accounts by contributory institutions, in response to the thrust espoused in 
the Zimbabwe National Financial Inclusion Strategy. Further, the separation of Nostro FCA and 
RTGS FCA accounts contributed to the increase.

3.2 Deposit Cover Level for Deposit Taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs)
The maximum deposit protection cover for DTMFIs is pegged at $250 per depositor per deposit 
class. At this cover level, 98.5% of the depositor accounts valued at $456,971 were covered in full 
as reflected in table 3 below:

The Deposit Protection Corporation shall continue to review the insurable limit for DTMFIs considering several 
factors, which include the size of the Fund and socio-economic factors.

4. Deposit Growth
Total deposits eligible for premium assessment increased by 25.7% to $8.8 billion, from $7 billion 
in 2017. The increase in the deposits was largely driven by customers’ inability to withdraw 
cash due to cash rationing, the increase in money supply and the accumulation of non-remitted 
foreign payments. Figure 1 below shows each Sub-sector’s trend of deposits eligible for premium 
assessment from December 2015 to December 2018:

December 
2018

% December 
2017

%

Total Number of Deposit Accounts 3,441,231 100% 2,571,414 100%
Total Number of Deposit Accounts Fully Cov-
ered.

3,242,315 94.2% 2,399,656 93.3%

Total Number of Deposit Accounts Partially 
Covered.

319,906 5.8% 171,758 6.7%

Value of Deposits in Fully Covered Accounts $263.9 million 3.0% $225.1 million 3.2%
Value of Deposits in Partially Covered Accounts. $8.5 billion 97.0% $6.8 billion 96.8%
Total Value of Insured Deposits $467.5 million 5.3% $396.5 million 5.7%
Total Value of Deposits $8.8 billion 100% US$7 billion 100%

Table 2: Deposit Protection Cover for the Banking Sector as at 31 December 2018

December 
2018

% December 
2017

%

Total Number of Deposit Accounts 58,146 100% 7,220 100%
Total Number of Deposit Accounts Fully Cov-
ered.

57,286 98.5% 6,686 92.6%

Total Number of Deposit Accounts Partially 
Covered.

860 1.5% 534 7.4%

Value of Deposits in Fully Covered Accounts $456,971 1.7% $218,216 2%
Value of Deposits in Partially Covered Accounts. $26.9 million 98.3% $10.7 million 98%
Total Value of Insured Deposits $671,971 2.5% $351,716 3.2%
Total Value of Deposits $26.4 million 100% $10.9 million 100%

Table 3: Deposit Protection Cover for DTMFIs as at 31 December 2018
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      Fig 1:Deposit Growth by Sub- sector from December 2015 to December 2018

5. Distribution and Average Deposit Sizes
DTMFIs recorded the lowest average deposit size of $453, whilst the building society’s subsector 
recorded a relatively stable average deposit size of $3,054. DTMFIs deposits eligible for premium 
assessment grew by 142.2% from $10.9 million to $26.4 million due to the inclusion of Empower 
Bank and Zimbabwe Women’s Microfinance Bank in the Deposit Insurance Scheme. Table 4 below 
shows the distribution of deposits by sector as at 31 December 2018:
 Table 4: Distribution and Average size of Deposits by Sector as at 31 December 2018

Year 2018 2017 
Commercial Banks  

No. of Institutions 14 14 
No. of Accounts 3, 016, 278 2,925,972 
Total Deposits ($m) 7,493.5 6,030.0 
Average Deposit Size ($) 2,484.3 2,060.9 

Building Societies 
No. of Institutions 5 5 
No. of Accounts 413,113 362,751 
Total Deposits($m) 1,276.7  1,112 
Average Deposit Size ($) 3,054 3,065.3 

Merchant Banks & Development Banks  
No. of institutions 2 1 
No. of Accounts  6,840 6,134 
Total Deposits ($m) 35.4 35.3 
Average Deposit Size ($) 5,178 5,762 

Deposit Taking Micro-Finance Institutions 
No. of institutions 6 4 
No. of Accounts  6,840 7,220 
Total Deposits ($m) 35.4 10.9  
Average Deposit Size ($) 5,178 1,509.7  

Market Aggregate 
No. of institutions 27 24 
No. of Accounts  3,499,377 2,578,634 
Total Deposits ($m) 8,805.61 7,036.4  
Average Deposit Size ($) 2,516 2,728.7  
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5.1 Sectoral Distribution of Deposits
The banking sector’s deposits remained concentrated in the commercial bank sub-sector, which 
constituted 87.6% of the total deposits. Figure 2 below shows market share of deposits by sub 
sector. 

FIGURE 2: MARKET SHARE OF DEPOSITS BY SUBSECTOR AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

6. Deposit Composition
The bulk of the deposits eligible for premium assessment were demand and time deposits, which accounted 
for 77% and 14% of the total deposit base, respectively. There was a marginal increase in the market share 
of demand deposits from 73% to 77%. The increase in the market share was mainly attributable to corporate 
demand deposit, which remained on an upward trajectory throughout the year. Demand deposits were $6.8 
billion, up from $5.2 billion in 2018, whilst time deposits remained relatively stable at $1.2 billion. Figure 3A 
and 3B below illustrate the composition of deposits at member institutions as at 31 December 2017 and 31 
December 2018:  
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7. Key Developments 
7.1 Workshop on Crytocurrencies
The Deposit Protection Corporation in conjunction with the Macroeconomic and Financial Management Institute 
of Eastern and Southern Africa (MEFMI) conducted a workshop on cryptocurrencies from 5 to 6 November 
2018.  The main purpose of the workshop was to share knowledge, practices and deepen understanding 
of cryptocurrencies, blockchain technology and virtual currencies.  Participants were drawn from the five 
financial safety net players namely Deposit Protection Corporation, Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe, Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Zimbabwe, Insurance & Pensions Commission and the Ministry of Finance & 
Economic Development. 

Globally, financial sector regulators and governments have invested in the need to embrace cryptocurrencies 
as financial products. However, there is a mixed reaction on the acceptance of cryptocurrencies, with one 
school of thought viewing it as innovation and progressive technology, whilst the other perspective views it as 
disruptive to financial systems due to absence of financial regulation. 
There was a consensus amongst the participants of the need to closely monitor worldwide developments 
in these digital currencies and the regulatory frameworks being proposed by other countries where these 
cryptocurrency products are well-developed.

BANK RESOLUTION, RECOVERIES & INVESTIGATIONS
 During the review period, there were no bank failures and the Corporation continued its resolution of six banks 
under liquidation and one bank under Provisional Judicial Management. Tetrad Investment Bank was removed 
from provisional judicial management (PJM) and handed over to its new directors at an Extraordinary General 
Meeting held on 30 October 2018 following the successful implementation of the scheme of arrangement.

The failure resolution options that the Corporation utilized included depositor reimbursements, liquidations, 
judicial management and implementation of a scheme of arrangement, which involved the conversion of debt 
to equity and cash pay outs to creditors.

The Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) payments to depositors take place on two fronts:
 • The Deposit Protection Fund(DPF) up to the maximum insurable limit;
 • Liquidation dividends on a pro-rate basis depending on debt recoveries and asset realisation.

Pursuant to its mandate, the Corporation has compensated insured depositors of nine (9) failed banking 
institutions since its inception in July 2003.Compensation of depositors of three (3) institutions, i.e. Century 
Discount House (CDH), Rapid Discount House (RDH) and Sagit Finance House (SFH) was done during the 
Zimbabwe dollar era from 2004 to 2006, when DPC was still a pay box, whilst six (6) institutions were closed 
after dollarization between July 2012 and December 2015. 

Compensation to depositors of four (4) banks closed after 2012 is still ongoing and the deadline for compensation 
of Genesis Investment Bank depositors from the Deposit Protection Fund (DPF) lapsed on 30 June 2018 whilst 
that for Royal Bank depositors lapsed on 30 June 2018 in terms of section 38(5b) of the Deposit Protection 
Corporation (DPC) Act [Chapter 24:29].

Liquidation dividends were paid out to creditors of four (4) closed banks during the year 2018, namely, Interfin, 
Royal Bank, Afrasia and Trust Bank. Interfin, Afrasia and Trust Bank managed to pay off all its preferred 
creditors during 2018.
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DEPOSIT INSURANCE PAYMENTS
The table below provides a synopsis of deposit insurance payments in respect of the failed 
contributory institutions since 2004:

  Table: Deposit Insurance Payments: 2 January 2004 - 31 December 2018 

As at 31 December 2018, DPC had reimbursed 15,313 out of $54,909 depositors of the six banks 
currently in liquidation, whilst in monetary terms, about $3.6 million had been paid out as deposit 
insurance payments to depositors of the six closed banks. Depositors have been paid using bank 
transfers, cash or through mobile platforms. The mobile platforms have been very popular with most 
of our depositors who reside in remote areas.

• Reimbursement Trends
Since the establishment of DPC in 2003, the institution has made significant strides in reimbursing 
depositors of institutions that failed during the multi-currency system. In 2012, there was only one 
failed institution under liquidation, Genesis Investment Bank, and the failure of Royal Bank in 2013 
increased the number to two. Trust Bank and Interfin Bank failed in 2014 whilst Afrasia and Allied 
failed in 2015. The graphs below show the trends in the number and value of deposit insurance 
payments from 2012 to 2018.

.

Bank 
Name 

Date  
Closed 

Total Insured 
Deposits 
(Value) 

Insured  
Deposits 
Paid 
(Value) 

% of 
Value 
Paid 

Total # 
of 
Depositors 

# of  
Depositors 
Paid 

% 
Depositors 
Paid 

Balance  
of unpaid 
depositors 

CDH 
 

02.1.04 Z$63,266 Z$33,900 54% 397           178 45%     219 

RDH 26.3.04 Z$182,847 Z$83,287 45% 1,215 472 39%     743 
SFH 02.3.06 Z$12,2 million Z$11,5 million 94% 3,003 2,832 94%     171 
SUB-TOTAL  Z$12,5 million Z$11,6 million 92 % 4,615 3,482 75%  1,133 
 
 

        

Royal Bank 27.7.12 US$472,206 US$358,654 76% 5,453 3,111 57% 2,342
Genesis 
Bank 

11.6.12 US$ 11,810 US$8,821 75%      86      62 72%      24 

Trust Bank 6.12.13 US$328,516 US$169,877 52% 2,958 1,041 35%   1,917 
Interfin Bank 31.12.14 US$918,814 US$325,373 35% 13,021 2,738 21% 10,283 
Allied Bank 08.01.15 US$1,248,307 US$536,503 43% 9,228 1,539 17%   7,689 
AfrAsia 24.02.15 US$3,439,276 US$2,212,152 64% 24,163 6,822 28% 17,341 
SUB-TOTAL  US$6,418,930 US$3,611,380 56% 54,909 15,313 28% 39,596 
TOTAL 
 

    59,524  18,795  40,729 
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The charts below show the individual banks’ share of reimbursements against the total reimbursements 
as at 31 December 2018:

Afrasia bank had the highest payout amount of $2.2 million, which translates to 61% of the total 
amount paid to depositors ($3.6 million) of the six banks as at 31 December 2018.

In terms of number of depositors paid to date, Afrasia bank also had the highest number of depositors 
paid 6,822(45%) out of the 15,313 depositors paid for the six banks under liquidation. Genesis bank 
had the least number of depositors compensated due to its low deposit base. 

Response Rate
Since DPC’s inception in 2003, a total 18,795 out of 59,524 depositors (for nine closed institutions) 
have benefitted from the deposit protection scheme. In other words, about 32% of the eligible 
depositors have lodged their claims with DPC. One of the major hindrances in contacting depositors 
has been the poor quality of depositor records at banks such that the contact details like addresses, 
phone numbers and e-mails are not up to date. This is a major challenge that negatively affects the 
response rate.

Furthermore, most depositors with small balances are reluctant to submit their claims whilst some 
corporates with balances above the insurable amount would rather wait for the liquidation process 
than submit claims for the maximum insurable amount  .The Corporation has engaged in several 
initiatives that include; public awareness campaigns through media adverts and roadshows, 
convening workshops with banking institutions and mobile money service providers, sending bulk 
SMSs and facilitating submission of claim forms via Zimpost in order to improve the response rate. 
Quite several depositors have also been paid using ecocash without the need to submit claim forms.

LIQUIDATION OF CLOSED BANKS
During the period under review, the Corporation continued to execute its mandate as liquidator of 
closed banks through the realisation of assets and payment of liquidation dividends to creditors 
and uninsured depositors. DPC is currently Liquidator of six closed banks, which are all in final 
liquidation and are at various stages of the liquidation process. Total recoveries for the six (6) banks 
under liquidation increased by 64% from $30 million in December 2017 to $49.3 million as at 31 
December 2018. 

The Corporation adopted an aggressive recovery strategy during the period under review whereby 
in addition to cash, it started accepting payment by way of treasury bills and immovable assets. As 
a result of these efforts, the cumulative dividend paid out by the Corporation increased by 140% 
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from $8.5 million in December 2017 to $20.04 million as at 31 December 2018. Total liabilities of 
banking institutions under liquidation stood at $284 million against total assets of $93.4 million as 
at 31 December 2018. The specific status of each banking institution under resolution is discussed 
hereunder:

a. GENESIS INVESTMENT BANK (In Final Liquidation) - Closed 11 June 2012
To date the bank has declared three dividends to preferred and concurrent creditors. Preferred 
creditors were paid a total of $162,456, whilst concurrent creditors were paid about $231,000, or 
$0.06 per dollar.
Finalisation of the liquidation of the bank hinges on the disposal of 10 class B shares in Afreximbank 
valued $100,000.00. DPC is still engaging several stakeholders including RBZ and Afreximbank 
directly with a view to find a Zimbabwean buyer for the shares currently held by the failed Zimbabwean 
institutions tabulated below:

b. ROYAL BANK LIMITED: (In Final liquidation) - Closed 27 July 2012
As at 31 December 2018 total of $938,275 had been paid to preferred creditors in the First and 
Second Interim Liquidation & Distribution Accounts whilst $207,931 was paid to CBZ, a secured 
creditor. To date no payments have been made to concurrent creditors of Royal Bank due to low 
recovery rate.

Following the completion of a forensic audit, the Corporation instituted action against all the nine (9) 
directors of the Bank claiming payment of $11.38 million being prejudice suffered by the depositors 
and creditors. The matter is pending before the High Court.

c. TRUST BANK CORPORATION (In Final Liquidation): Closed 6 December 2013
Cumulatively, about $1.5 million has been paid to preferred creditors whilst concurrent creditors 
have been paid $3.2 million or $0.21 per dollar from the three (3) dividend payout. Secured creditors 
have so far been paid a total of $834,043.

Following completion of a forensic audit, the Corporation instituted action against all the eight (8) 
directors of Trust Bank claiming payment of $24.3 million being prejudice suffered by the depositors 
and creditors. The matter is still pending before the High Court.

d. INTERFIN BANK (In Final Liquidation): Closed 31 December 2014
Cumulatively, about $1.7 million has been paid out as dividend to the bank’s preferred creditors 
whilst concurrent creditors were paid $3.6 million or $0.04 per dollar from the four dividend payout. 
About $7.28 million was paid to a secured creditor, NSSA, in the form of properties.
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The appeal against Al Shams Global ’s security agreements with the bank is still pending before the 
Supreme Court. The bank is challenging the validity of cession of $27 million to Al Shams Global 
Limited (Al Shams) at a time the bank was in a distressed financial condition.

The Corporation also commenced action against the 13 directors of the bank in October 2016 
claiming payment of $157, 7 million and interest thereon at the prescribed rate, being prejudice 
suffered by the bank because of the director’s actions. Progress has been slow, as the directors 
have been raising a plethora of frivolous technical defences.

e. ALLIED BANK (In Final Liquidation): Closed 8-Jan-2015
As at 31 December 2018, $727,077 had been realized from debt collection whilst $1.98 million was 
realised from sale of government stock and disposal of movable assets and Nicoz Diamond Shares. 
Only $142,497 has been paid out as dividends to preferred creditors due to the low recovery rate.
The Corporation is still actively pursuing the major shareholder of the bank, Trebo and Khays, who 
failed and/or refused to transfer assets pledged as capital, supposedly valued at $16.7m.  The 
matter is still pending before the courts

A forensic audit was commissioned to ascertain if the board contravened any laws, statutes and/
or regulations and are personally liable to pay damages or compensation to the bank for trading 
recklessly and/or negligently. The draft forensic audit report is currently undergoing internal review 
after which the Corporation will assign lawyers to provide a legal opinion.

f. AFRASIA BANK ZIMBABWE LIMITED (In Final Liquidation): Closed 24-Feb-2015
Cumulatively, the bank’s concurrent creditors have been paid $4.8 million or 12 cents per dollar 
whilst preferred creditors have been paid $3.5 million from the five (5) dividend payout. About 
$157,320 was paid to a secured creditor (NSSA) as full and final settlement of its claim.

The Corporation has instructed lawyers to issue summons against the parties at fault in terms of 
section 318 and 319 of the Companies Act [Chapter 24:03]. The lawyers are finalising on the draft 
summons before issue. 

g. CAPITAL BANK (Filed for voluntary liquidation) - Closed: 4 June 2014
NSSA, the major shareholder in the bank filed a fresh application for liquidation on 12 February 
2018 in terms of section 206 of the Companies Act [Chapter 24:03]. The application was opposed 
by the minority shareholder, Renaissance Financial Holdings Limited (RFHL). The matter was 
heard in the High Court on 6 November 2018 and the Court ruled that the bank should be placed 
in provisional liquidation.

JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT
The main objective of Judicial Management is to avoid the drastic measure of liquidation when an 
institution is in financial distress due to mismanagement or some other cause. The Courts will grant 
a Judicial Management order if there is a reasonable probability that under Judicial Management, 
the institution can be rescued and become a successful concern.
Judicial Management provides corporations with statutory moratorium against legal law suits from 
creditors whilst the Judicial Manager assess the state of the business and then crafts a turnaround 
strategy on the way forward.
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h. TETRAD INVESTMENT BANK (Provisional Judicial Management Lifted on 30 October 2018) 
Tetrad Investment Bank was removed from provisional judicial management (PJM) and handed over 
to its new directors at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 30 October 2018 in terms of the 
High Court order HC219/15.

The conversion of debt to equity resulted in the institution having positive equity of about $26.7 
million as at 30 November 2018 following recoveries and fair valuation of investments. The resultant 
capital position now complies with prudential minimum capital requirement of US$25 million. 

Although the capital position of the banking institution is now positive, TIB still needs fresh liquid 
capital injection for working capital purposes; adequate management information system; appropriate 
banking premises; properly constituted board as per dictates of the law; as well as appointment of 
fit and proper senior management in order to competently resume banking operations.

The banking institution is required to invite the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe for a pre-opening 
inspection once the outstanding issues have been attended to. It is recommended that the banking 
institution must demonstrate full compliance with all the requisite prudential and regulatory 
requirements before it can resume banking operations.

The table below summarizes the status of banks under resolution as at 31 December 2018:

Table: Status of Banks under Resolution as at 31 December 2018
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EFFECTIVE RESOLUTION REGIME
The recent promulgation of the Insolvency Act [Chapter 6:07] has created a void for liquidation 
procedures for banking institutions as the new legislation is no longer applicable to the winding up 
of banking institutions. The Corporation is therefore seized with the task of addressing the existing 
gaps in the current legislation to ensure that the resolution of member institutions can take place in 
an orderly manner.

An effective resolution regime should ensure that financial institutions are resolved without severe 
systemic disruption and without exposing taxpayers to loss, whilst protecting key economic functions 
through mechanisms, which make it possible for shareholders and unsecured creditors to absorb 
losses in a manner that respects the hierarchy of claims in liquidation.
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LEGAL & GOVERNANCE ISSUES
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The Board of Directors of the Deposit Protection Corporation recognizes the importance of good 
corporate governance and is committed to conducting the business of the Corporation with 
integrity, transparency, accountability and probity, ensuring that its conduct is above reproach. The 
Corporation subscribes to principles of International and local best practices as guided by, inter 
alia, the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) Core Principles for Effective Deposit 
Insurance Systems (Core Principles) and the Public Entities Corporate Governance Act (Chapter 
10: 31), the Public Finance Management Act (Chapter 22:19), the Banking Act (Chapter 24:20), the 
Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29), the Board Charter and Code of Ethics. The 
Corporation complies with regulatory and corporate governance requirements and is committed to 
strict adherence to the laws governing its operations.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Section 6(1) of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29) (the Act) which provides that the oper-
ations of the Corporation shall be controlled by a Board of Directors consisting of-
a. One (1) Director to represent the Ministry of Finance
b. One (1) Director to represent the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe
c. Four (4) Directors to represent contributory institutions, and
d. The Chief Executive Officer

The Board is the main decision-making body, setting the strategic direction of the Corporation and overall 
corporate governance, ensuring that appropriate systems and controls are in place. The Board is led by 
an independent Non-Executive Chairman, thereby ensuring constructive checks and balances between 
Executive management and the Board. The role of the Chairman is to manage the Board effectively, to provide 
leadership to the Board and to facilitate the Board’s interface with management. Along with the Chairman and 
the Executive Director, are Non-Executive Directors who are responsible for ensuring that the Board fulfils its 
mandate in accordance with the law. 

Resignation of Directors and changes on the Board
During the year, the Corporation lost one of its esteemed board members, Mr. Moses Masasi who passed 
away on the 27th of April 2018. Mr. Masasi was appointed to the Board of DPC on the 15th of February 2018 
and served for an effective 15 months.

The Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer, Mr. John Mafungei Chikura retired on the 31st of July 2018 in 
line with the Public Entities Corporate Governance Act (Chapter 10:31) which provides that contracts of 
employment for Chief Executive Officers who have served for 10 years or more shall not be renewed. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Audit, Finance & 
Investments Committee

Human Resources 
Committee

Risk & Resolution 
Committee
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Mr. Chikura joined the Corporation in July 2003 and served the Corporation with distinction for 15 years. The 
Corporation is where it is today due to his vision and excellent leadership qualities. We thank Mr J Chikura for 
his distinguished service to the Corporation.

Board Committees
The Board established and delegated specific roles and responsibilities to sub-committees to ensure the 
efficient discharge of the Board’s mandate. The ultimate responsibility of running the Corporation however 
remains with the Board. The sub-committees, namely the Audit, Finance and Investments Committee, the 
Human Resources Committee and the Risk and Resolution Committee aid the Board and its Directors in giving 
detailed attention to specific areas of the directors’ duties and responsibilities. 

The terms of reference of each committee are approved by the Board and reviewed where necessary. All 
Committees are chaired by independent non-executive Directors. The committees meet quarterly or as the 
need arises. The Board receives minutes of the committees and the committee chairpersons updates the full 
Board on agenda items covered and the resolutions made by their respective committees.

Director Training and Development
In order to ensure that the Board provides strategic insights and contributes effectively to the discharge of the 
Corporation`s mandate, the Corporation facilitates training for the directors. The training assists Directors to 
be up to date with best practices, be aware of our operating environment and to equip them with the relevant 
skills to effectively execute their duties.

Analysis of Board and Committees Attendance Registers
The Board met three (3) times during the accounting year. The following is the Board meetings’ attendance 
register for 2018:

NAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED
Mr A. Moyo (Chairman) 4 4
Dr. K. Mlambo 4 4
Mrs V. Nyemba 4 4
Mr J Chikura (CEO) 4 

(Resigned in July 2018)
1

Mrs S. Pilime 4 4
Mr. M. Masasi 4

(Passed away on 27 April 2018)
1

Mrs J.J. Rusike 4 4
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AUDIT, FINANCE & INVESTMENTS COMMITTEE
NAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED
Mrs J.J. Rusike (Chairman) 4 4
Dr K. Mlambo 4 2
Mr. M. Masasi 4 

(passed away 27 April 
2018)

2

NAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED
Mrs V. Nyemba (Chairman) 4 4
Dr. K. Mlambo 4 4
Mrs. S. Pilime 4 4

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

NAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED
Dr. K. Mlambo (Chairman) 4 3
Mr. A. Moyo 4 4
Mrs V. Nyemba 4 3

RISK & RESOLUTION COMMITTEE

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT
The legal framework governing the operations of the Corporation consists of the Deposit Protection 
Act (Chapter 24:29); Deposit Protection Corporation Regulations, Statutory Instrument 156 of 2013 
(S.1 156 of 2013); Banking Act (Chapter 24:20); Public Entities Corporate Governance Act (Chapter 
10:31), Public Entities Corporate Governance (General) Regulations, 2018 (S.1 168 of 2018), Public 
Finance Management Act (Chapter 22:19); Companies Act (Chapter 24:03), Public Procurement 
and disposal of Public Assets Act (Chapter 22:23),  Public Procurement and Disposal of Assets 
(General) Regulations, Statutory Instrument 5 of 2018, and the Labour Act (Chapter 28:01) amongst 
others.  

The Public Entities Corporate Governance Act (Chapter 10:31) was promulgated in 2018, to provide 
for the governance of public entities in compliance with Chapter 9 of the Constitution. The Public 
Entities Corporate Governance Act compels all public entities to comply with corporate governance 
principles. It governs the appointment of board members into public entities boards, their remuneration 
framework, terms of office, dismissal, CEO`s terms of office, performance contracts, senior staff 
contracts, conditions of service framework, strategic plans, annual reports, board charter and code 
of ethics vis-à-vis a host of compliance issues to be attended thereto.

Statement of Compliance
Based on the information set out in the Legal and Corporate Affairs report, the Corporation complied 
with the requisite legislative and corporate governance requirements throughout the accounting 
period.
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INTERNAL AUDIT
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In 2018, the Internal Audit Department assisted the Audit Committee to provide assurance 
on internal controls, risk management and governance processes in the Deposit Protection 
Corporation.  The Audit Committee considered the internal reports submitted by Internal Audit 
on a quarterly basis, noted the issues raised, the management responses and action taken to 
improve the systems of internal control. 

Statement of Internal Control 
As a statutory Body, the DPC’s Board of Directors acknowledges that it is good corporate 
governance to make a Statement of internal Control.

Responsibilities for Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board sets the overall direction for the Deposit Protection Corporation as it provides an 
important oversight function and ensures that Management has an effective Risk management 
system and a sound system of Internal Control to maintain good corporate governance. The 
Board acknowledges that a sound system of Internal Control is essential to achieve effective 
and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting, strict compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations, as well as proper safeguarding of DPC assets.

The Board recognizes that the DPC system of Internal Control is intended to manage and mitigate 
risks to achieve the Corporation’s statutory mandate and objectives.
The review of the effectiveness, integrity and adequacy of DPC’s system of Internal Controls is 
a concerted and continuous process and involves the Audit Committee, Management, Internal 
Audit and DPC’s external auditors.

Review of Systems of Internal Control

The Audit Committee considered on a quarterly basis;
a) The Internal Audit reports;
b) DPC’s financial reports;
c) The utilization of resources as compared to the Budgets;
d) The implementation of the Risk Management framework;
e) The update and progress of Management’s overall performance against initiatives set out in
       the Corporate Plan as well as Management’s assessments of Internal and external factors
       that may impact the performance of the Corporate Plan. 

Statement of The Effectiveness of Internal Controls
The effectiveness of the DPC’s compliance with Internal Controls as at 31st December 2018 was 
assessed by Management and validated by Internal Audit. Based on the assessment and the 
effectiveness of the DPC’s systems, policies, practices and processes established in 2018, the 
Board is pleased to report that a sound system of Internal Control within the Corporation was 
established.

The Board is committed to ensure that Management continuously takes pro-active measures to:
a) Create a conducive corporate culture and environment that emphasizes accountability for
    control and risk management.
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b) Identify, assess and address the various risks that could hinder the achievement of the
    Corporation’s objectives.
c) Review and monitor the entire system of Internal Control and address issues or problems
    adequately on a timely basis.

There were no major reported incidences or weaknesses or deficiencies in the adequacy and 
integrity of Internal Controls embedded in the Deposit Protection Corporation’s systems, policies, 
practices and processes for the period to 31st December 2018.
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“ In order to protect depositors and contribute to financial stability, it is 
essential that the public is informed on an ongoing basis about the benefits 

and limitations of the deposit insurance system 

Principle 10 of the Core Principles for Effective Deposit Insurance Systems issued by 
the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI).

”
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Introduction
Public awareness and confidence in the Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) is important for DPC 
to achieve its mandate of promoting public confidence and contributing towards the stability of the 
country’s financial system. Hence, DPC implemented a variety of initiatives in order to maintain a 
good level of awareness and enhance the public’s understanding of its role in the country’s financial 
system.

Brand Awareness Survey
In order to assess the effectiveness of public awareness programs, IADI recommends deposit 
insurers to undertake periodic assessments of public awareness levels by engaging professional and 
independent research agencies. In line with this recommendation, the Corporation commissioned 
an independent research agency to undertake a national survey. To date, this was the second 
study following a similar exercise carried out in 2015. Findings revealed an increase in the brand 
awareness index from 20% in 2015 to 26% in 2018. This increase in awareness levels is attributed 
to the success of DPC’s publicity plan, the use of mass media communication strategies namely 
roadshows, radio, television commercials and print advertisements.

Digital Marketing 
Online marketing channels offered cost-effective communication reach with rich data metrics for 
analytics and ability to tailor-make our communication messages in real-time. The Corporation 
maintained a website which acted as a central repository for up to date information with social 
media platforms namely Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and WhatsApp helped to complement the 
Corporation’s digital efforts. The online platforms were popular with the general public for submitting 
enquiries and getting real-time responses and updates.

Bulk text messages, email newsletters and online banners displayed on high traffic websites enabled 
the Corporation to reach a wide base at a very low cost. The intention is to continue investing in 
online publicity efforts following the continued growth of mobile and internet penetration in the 
country. 

Traditional Advertising
Despite the high cost, mass media channels such as newspapers, radio and television provided the 
Corporation with the much-needed geographical reach considering most small depositors reside in 
remote areas and can easily access radio and television communication messages.

Flighting of newspaper articles in national and regional newspapers greatly assisted in raising 
awareness and deepening knowledge on the Corporation’s brand and its operations. The heightened 
interest and coverage by reporters from print, television and radio media houses ensured the 
Corporation frequently received positive and free publicity. 

Going forward, strategic partnerships with community radio stations will be considered as part of 
enhancing the traditional communication mix in order to amplify brand visibility.
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Events Marketing
Roadshows carried out across the country provided the Corporation with the greatest exposure 
compared to any other communication tool. Partnership with major radio stations enabled the 
Corporation tap into their large listenership audience at a very low cost.

The Corporation also participated in several national and regional exhibitions that offered high 
publicity opportunities at a lower cost. Exhibitions provided closer interaction with the public and 
opportunities to deepen knowledge of the Deposit Protection Scheme. Exhibitions offered excellent 
brand exposure through our branded exhibition stands, newspaper advertisements, editorials, radio 
coverage, meetings with media practitioners and distribution of brochures and branded corporate 
gifts to the public. Valuable linkages were made with key stakeholders such as parliamentarians, 
rural district councils and member associations that assisted in the dissemination of our information 
at low cost in their respective constituencies.

Strategic Partnerships
The Corporation collaborated with other stakeholders in its quest to enhance brand visibility 
and knowledge transfer. The success of the Corporation’s public awareness strategy benefitted 
from strategic partnerships with member institutions, postal service provider (ZIMPOST), media 
practitioners and safety-net players. Informal engagements and visits to media houses helped 
to strengthen relationships and in turn we received fair coverage of the Corporation’s activities. 
Zimpost continued to provide a convenient access channel for depositors of closed banks especially 
those residing in remote areas. 

Member institutions were following the publicity requirements as required by law and this greatly 
assisted in the visibility of the Corporation’s brand across their customer touchpoints. Sponsorship 
and attendance to corporate events hosted by our partners went a long way in relationship 
management for the good of the Corporation’s brand and awareness objective.

Going Forward
New content and materials for mass awareness and granular understanding of deposit protection, 
financial literacy and financial inclusion will be developed and implemented. Due to increasing 
advertising costs, the Corporation will realign its public awareness strategies and concentrate effort 
and resources on channels that provide high coverage, high impact and low cost. 

Digital channels will be central in the overall publicity plan in reaching out to urban and rural clients 
in the delivery of our key messages that enhance public confidence and contribute to financial 
stability.
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HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Human Capital continues to be anchored as an integral component in ensuring the Corporation achieves 
its strategic objectives and delivers its mandate.  The Corporation continues to attract and retain high calibre 
of talent through continuously interrogating the value proposition and making relevant interventions. We 
have thrived to create an environment that embraces change, accommodate new trends and technology and 
incorporate new skills to keep up with the ever-changing environment and remain relevant in the global arena.

We believe that sustainable growth and success of the Corporation depend mostly on our people. Special 
focus is paid to staff morale as it is a key determinant in the quality of deliverables and levels of productivity. 
The staff compliment went up from 31 in the prior year to 33 dedicated and committed members in the current 
year.

  

Employee Nurturing & Development

Our training and development policies are designed to nurture and develop staff to perform at their fullest 
capacity. The quality of learning and training focusses on skills development with a view of improving efficiencies 
based on international best practice.  There is a deliberate plan to invest in improving staff competencies in 
Deposit Protection and Bank Resolution. The ethos of investing in people to enable them to perform better 
and to empower them to make the best use of their natural abilities and continuously develop themselves will 
remain enforce.

 

Performance Management 

The Corporation has adopted the Integrated Results Based Management (IRBM) which is a performance 
management system that works towards the improvement of the overall organizational performance by 
managing the performances of teams and individuals. The system ensures that optimum performance is 
always maintained . It also clarifies the role of individuals and how they contribute to the overall attainment 
of the strategic objectives. The beauty of the system is that it has a direct relationship with the budget and 
resources allocation which are key inputs in achieving the strategic objectives.

 

Strategic Plan

The strategic review workshop was held in September 2018 and the Corporation is on course in terms of 
achieving its goals by 2021. The review process helped the team to identify deviations from set strategic 
targets and necessary corrective steps were taken to ensure realization of our strategic intentions. The 
process provided an opportunity to take stock of past successes and failures, to determine the pathways for 
the attainment of our intermediate goals and strategic vision considering the Vision 2030 national strategy. 

During the review process, strategies and programmes were put forward in response to new developments 
in our environment and the changing expectations of our customers and other stakeholders. The strategic 
objectives will be subjected to periodic reviews to ensure successful strategy implementation. 
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INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
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Introduction
The ICT Function operates in the Finance and Administration Department. Most of the applications 
run on a Windows based system with the remainder running on either Linux or Apple systems. 
The ICT Function enables the organisation to meet its objectives by facilitating stable systems 
and platforms that foster data integrity, prompt deposit compensation and provision of timely 
information. The function’s strength is driven by continuous learning, research and development to 
steer innovation.

ICT Developments
The software applications tally increased by one during the period with four applications having 
version upgrades. The development of a Document Archiving System commenced during the year 
under review. This intranet-based system will digitise paper documents and store them in electronic 
form. The online documents can be accessed through mobile and fixed compatible ICT devices. The 
system is expected to roll out in 2019.

The email and web servers were encrypted to secure online communication between the users and 
website content. The security of website and email content at rest or in transit provide confidence to 
the users of our online services and emails. The encryption certificates are renewed on an ongoing 
basis.

The Payout System was marginally upgraded to enhance functionality in pay-outs via mobile money 
transfer platforms. The automation of claims processing has eradicated irregularities in records 
duplication, double payments, under payments, balances inconsistences typical with the semi 
manual processes. The pay-outs money transfers are completed using a separate online payment 
application which was also upgraded during the year. The antivirus toolkit was upgraded to rectify 
security vulnerabilities in cyber space.

The ICT function acquired a statistical software that will be utilised in predictive analysis in bank 
failures. In addition, the software will compute econometrics that may feed as variables for risk 
modelling. Risk analysis and management are key in the running of a deposit insurance systems.
The launch of the Liquidation System was delayed due to challenges in compiling existing data 
stored in various locations for migration into the system. The in-house developed Liquidation 
System accounts for recoveries and payments for banks in liquidation. 

The ICT Function carried out several projects to improve delivery such as the expansion of the 
wireless network, adding Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP) services and replacing obsolete and 
outmoded ICT equipment amongst others. 

The post implementation review of the Risk Analysis and Payout Systems was conducted during 
the period by an external auditing firm. The purpose of the review was to provide assurance on the 
quality of the systems in compliance with best practices.  

The ICT function deployed the Windows Update Services server to manage security updates and 
patches to enhance ICT security. Organisations thrive on sound and secure ICT platforms and 
infrastructure, hence, investments in ICT security is no longer a luxury.
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The launch of the Liquidation System was delayed due to challenges in compiling existing data 
stored in various locations for migration into the system. The in-house developed Liquidation System 
accounts for recoveries and payments for banks in liquidation. 

ICT Security
Security breaches across technology companies recorded an increase during the year. Two major 
vulnerabilities in Central Processing Units (CPUs) named Spectre and Meltdown exposed sensitive 
information such as passwords to attackers. Intel and Apple were swift to rollout fixes to avert 
the problem that compromised several ICT equipment ranging from desktops, laptops, tablets and 
smart phones.

Data breaches appear to be the norm following scandals that rocked Facebook, British Airways 
and Under Armour amongst others.  Facebook lost trust following the Cambridge Analytica data 
scandals. British Airways (BA) revealed that a total of 500,000 victims had payment cards details, 
postal and email addresses compromised in August 2018. Related to that, Twitter was also in the 
spotlight after being accused of peddling fake news across the social media. 

The European Union enforced the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) in May 2018. The law 
is crafted to protect data access for its member countries and will apply to non-member countries or 
institutions dealing with data residing in the EU jurisdictions. Zimbabwe’s Information Communication 
Technology Policy was launched during the period under review to guide Zimbabwe’s economic 
development through a coordinated use of ICTs. In addition, the Innovation Drive, a policy that will 
provide funding to innovators in technology projects, was unveiled during the year under review. 

In conclusion, as previously indicated in prior year purchases and commitments denominated in 
foreign currency are presenting huge challenges due to the scarcity of the foreign currency in the 
country. Further, there was a drastic increase in the costs of ICT equipment and software during the 
year because of significant volatility in foreign exchange rates.
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the audited financial statements 
for the same period.

Nature of business
The Deposit Protection Corporation is governed by the Deposit Protection Act, (Chapter 24:29). The Deposit 
Protection Corporation aims at meeting a number of objectives that include:
• Protecting small, less-financially sophisticated depositors by providing an orderly means of compensation in
  the event of a deposit-taking institution becoming insolvent;
• Enhancing public confidence and systemic stability by providing a framework for the resolution of failed
  banks;
• Enhancing competition in the financial sector by mitigating some of the competitive barriers in the deposit
  taking industry; and,
• Helping in defining the boundaries of the Government exposure and support in protecting depositors when
  a bank or the Corporation of banks fails in normal times.

Compliance with IFRSs
The Financial Statements are prepared with the aim of complying fully with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRSs”). IFRSs comprise interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(“IASB”), which includes standards adopted by the IASB and interpretations developed by the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or by the former Standing Interpretations Committee. 

While full compliance with IFRSs has been possible in previous reporting periods, only partial compliance 
has been achieved for 2018. The IFRS Conceptual Framework, provides that in applying fair presentation to 
the Financial Statements, entities should go beyond consideration of the legal form of transactions and other 
factors impacting on the Financial Statements to also consider the underlying economic substance therein. 
International Accounting Standard 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange rates” (IAS21) requires 
an entity to apply certain parameters in determining the functional currency of an entity, for use in preparing its 
Financial Statements. IAS 21 also requires an entity to make certain judgements around appropriate exchange 
rates to be applied between currencies where exchangeability through a legal exchange mechanism (such as 
a formal currency market) is not achievable. In February 2019, the Government of Zimbabwe issued Statutory 
Instrument 33 of 2019, which, based on our legal interpretation, for accounting and other purposes, prescribes 
parity between the US Dollar and local currency as at and up to the effective date of 22 February 2019, 
and also prescribes the manner in which certain balances in the Financial Statements may be treated as a 
consequence of the recognition of the RTGS Dollar as currency in Zimbabwe.

In our opinion, the requirement to comply with Statutory Instrument 33 of 2019 has created inconsistencies 
with IAS 21, as well as with the principles embedded in the IFRS Conceptual Framework (see also guidance 
issued by the Public Accountants and Auditors Board on 21 March 2019). This has resulted in accounting 
treatment being adopted in the 2018 Financial Statements, which is different from that which would have been 
adopted if the Corporation had been able to comply with IFRS. As such, the Directors and Management have 
been unable to produce Financial Statements which in their view would be true and fair and urge users of the 
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financial statements to exercise due caution. Note 23 seeks to provide users with more information given the 
context and the aforementioned guidance.

Going concern
The Board of Directors has satisfied itself that the Corporation has adequate resources to continue in operation 
into the foreseeable future. The Corporation’s financial statements have accordingly been prepared on a going 
concern basis.

Directorate
There were changes in the composition of the Corporation’s board, the Chief Executive Officer Dr J. M Chikura 
retired during the year and one board member Mr P. Masasi passed on during 2017 these positions on the 
board are still open and they have not been filled. There were no new admissions during the year.

Auditors
The auditors, Messrs. Baker Tilly were appointed by the Auditor General for the 2018 audit.

By order of the Board
V. Vuma

_____________________________
Corporate Secretary/Legal Counsel
Harare, Zimbabwe
…………../…………../…………..
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY AND APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The directors are required in terms of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29) to 
maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the 
financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility 
to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the corporation as at the 
end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, 
in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged 
to express an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported 
by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial 
control established by the corporation and place considerable importance on maintaining a 
strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board sets 
standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a costeffective manner. 
The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, 
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level 
of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the corporation and all employees are required 
to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the corporation’s business is conducted in a 
manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the 
corporation is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the 
corporation. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the corporation endeavors to minimize 
it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behavior are applied 
and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.The directors are of the opinion, 
based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of internal control 
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the 
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, 
and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The directors are satisfied that 
the corporation has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the near 
future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the corporation’s 
financial statements. The financial statements have been examined by the corporation’s external 
auditors and their report is presented on page 4-7. The financial statements set out on pages 8-34, 
which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board on 16th May 
2019 and were signed on their behalf by:

______________________              ____________________                   ________________
M. Chingosho                                          Mr. A. Moyo                                     J. Rusike
Acting Chief Executive Officer                Chairman                                      Director 
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Independent Auditors Report
To the Members of Deposit Protection Corporation
Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Deposit Protection Corporation set out on pages 8 to 34, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  
In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section of 
our report, the financial statements do not present fairly the financial position of Deposit Protection Corporation 
as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Deposit Protection Corporation 
Act [Chapter 24:29].

Basis for Adverse Opinion 
As described in Note 3, during the year ended 31 December 2018, the entity transacted using a combination 
of the United States Dollars (USD), bond notes and bond coins, electronic money and other foreign currencies. 
Acute shortage of USD cash and other foreign currencies in the country resulted in an increase in utilization 
of different modes of payment for goods and services such as settlement via the Real Time Gross Settlement 
(RTGS) system overseen by the Central Bank and mobile money platforms. The note further explains that 
during the year there was a significant divergence in the market of the relative values between the USD, 
and the bond note, bond coin, mobile money platforms and RTGS, collectively referred to as ‘’ de facto local 
currency’’. Although RTGS and mobile money platforms were not legally recognized as currency during the 
year ended 31 December 2018, the substance of the economic phenomenon suggested that it was currency. 

In February 2019, an electronic currency called the RTGS dollar was introduced through Statutory Instrument 
33 of 2019 (S.I 33/19) with an effective date of 22 February 2019 and the currency commenced trading at a 
rate of 2.5 to the USD. In addition, S.I 33 fixed the exchange rate between RTGS dollar and the USD at a rate 
of 1:1 for periods before the effective date. The rate of 1:1 is consistent with the rate mandated by the Central 
Bank at the time it issued the bond notes and coins as currency. 

Although the functional currency of the entity changed from USD to local currency and it was evident that the 
market exchange rate between USD and local currency was not 1:1, financial statements have been presented 
in USD using an exchange rate of 1:1, in compliance with S.I 33/19.  This constitutes a departure from the 
requirements of IAS 21.

The directors have performed a sensitivity analysis of how different exchange rates would impact the 
Corporation’s statement of financial position in note 23 to the financial statements however, the amounts 
presented may not reflect the opening balances in RTGS dollars going forward. This confirms that had the local 
currency been translated to USD in accordance with IAS 21, elements in the statement of financial position 
would have been materially affected therefore the departure from the requirements of IAS 21 is considered to 
be pervasive. The effects of this departure on the Corporation’s financial statements have not been determined.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT 
MATTER 

Provision for protection payments

The determination of the provision for protection
payments represent the present value of the
Directors’ best estimate of the future cash flows that 
will be required under the Corporation’s obligations 
as set out in the Deposit Protection Corporation 
Act.

The estimate of the exposure is based on the 
value of deposits and the number of depositors of 
distressed institutions at the end of the year. The 
provision was based on the value of deposits and 
number of depositors of banking institutions with a 
CAMELS rating of 4 and 5.

Due to the judgements and estimates involved, we 
have considered the valuation of the provision for 
protection payments to be a key audit matter

We assessed the adequacy of the protection payments 
by reviewing the Directors’ judgements and estimates. 
Our audit procedures included but were not limited to 
the following:

We assessed whether the CAMELS model is an
appropriate basis for determining the distressed banks 
and therefore the basis for the provision.

We reperformed the calculation of the provision and 
assessed the assumptions and judgements used by 
management to arrive at the amount provided for.

We found the judgements and estimates made by the 
Directors to be appropriate for the estimation of the 
provision for protection payments.
We considered the related disclosures to be adequate 
and appropriate. (Refer to Note 18 for disclosures 
relating to the provision for protection payments).

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment were of the most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements of the current period and which are not materially impacted by the matter 
described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our adverse opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion section 
we determined the matters below to be key audit matters to communicate in our report.
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Other Information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises of the 
Director’s Report. Other information does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ 
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the organisation’s basis of accounting, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that is free from material 
misstatement whether due to fraud and error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organisation’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
organisation or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s statements that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). We are 
independent of the Corporation in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Zimbabwe, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the planning and performance of the audit. We also: 
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is  higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 
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- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
  that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
  effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
  estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 

- Conclude on the appropriateness of director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
  based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
  conditions that may cast significant doubt on Deposit Protection Corporation’s ability to continue
  as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
  attention in our auditor’s statements to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
  if such disclosure is inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
   evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s statements. However future events and conditions
  may cause Deposit Protection Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

From the matters communicated with those charges with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstance, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

………………………………………………………
Partner: Fungai Nyagwaya
PAAB Practising Number:0477
Baker Tilly Chartered Accountants (Zimbabwe)
8 Fletcher Road, Mount Pleasant Harare
Date:………/…………/………..
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Notes 2018

US$
2017
US$

Revenue
Premium income    15,693,182    11,805,906
Investment income 7      2,486,105      2,529,791
Other income 8      2,783,685         742,271
Total income    20,962,972    15,077,968

Expenses
Operating expenses 9 (3,803,689) (3,487,444)
Provision for protection payments 18          (92,134)                 -
Provision for assessed losses 14            (1,755)                 -
Profit on disposal of property plant 
and equipment

                 -                  -

Finance costs 10 (55,689) (24,059)
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year  17,009,705   11,566,465
Other comprehensive income                  -                  -

Total comprehensive (loss)/ income 
for the year

 17,009,705   11,566,465

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes

2018
US$

               2017
US$

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, vehicles and equipment   12                                4,190,743 2,292,792

Current assets
Financial assets 13 52,030,212 40,243,308
Trade and other receivables 14 5,834,967 4,428,039
Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,637,531         84,844

Total assets 63,693,453         47,048,983
------------------ ------------------

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
Reserves
Accumulated fund                     (Page 11)  59,634,899 42,625,194
Non-distributable reserve           (Page 11) 138,196 138,196

   

Total equity 59,773,095    42,763,390
------------------ ------------------

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 134,243 135,780
Provision for protection payments 18 3,781,336 4,060,862
Finance lease liability 17 4,779 88,951

------------------ ------------------
Total current liabilities 3,920,358                        4,285,593                  

Total reserves and liabilities 63,693,453 47,048,983

____________________                             _________________ _________________
M. Chingosho
Acting Chief Executive Officer

A. Moyo
Chairman

J. Rusike
Director
          

Date……………/……………/……………
Harare, Zimbabwe

DEPOSIT ROTECTION  CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION as at 31 December 2018
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Non-
Accumulated distributable
Fund reserve Total
US$ US$ US$

Balance at 1 January 2017         21,058,729              138,196       21,196,925

Total comprehensive income for the year         11,566,465                     -        11,566,465
Shareholder equity injection       10,000, 000                     -      10,000, 000

      -----------------      -----------------    -----------------
Balance at 31 December 2017         42,625,194     138,196       42,763,390

Total comprehensive income for the year          17,009,705                     -       17,009,705

Balance at 31 December 2018          59,634,899         138,196       59,773,095

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUNDS for the year ended 31 December 
2018
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2018 2017
Notes US$ US$

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year      17,009,705    11,566,465
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 12          329,462         200,112
(Profit)/Loss on disposal of property, vehicles and equipment 8              3,741             (161)

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss  55,689           24,059                 
Accrued interest income on investments 13 (788,279)                (494,630)
Protection payments provision 19           92,134

Provision for doubtful debts 14.1  (1,468,119) -
Provision for credit losses 14.1     1,755    -

-------------- --------------
15,236,087 11,0295,846

Movements in working capital:

(Increase)/ decrease in trade and other receivables 59,435           (304,825)         
Decrease in trade and other payables (1,536) 18,247

Cash generated from operations   15,293,986 11,009,268

Interest paid 10          (55,689)        (24,059)
Protection payments 19        (371,661)   (1,197,034)

-------------- --------------
Net cash generated by operating activities    (14,866,637))  (9,788,175)

Cash flows from investing activities
Property, vehicles and equipment additions: expansion 12      (2,209,504)       (984,234)

Investment in financial assets 13    (10,998,625)  (18,723,232)

Proceeds from disposal of property, vehicles and equipment                        45,300                 885

Net cash used in investing activities (13,162,829) -6,494,493

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings         (151,122)       (257,271)

Shareholder capital injection                                           - 10,000,000

------------- --------------
Net cash flows used in financing activities         (151,122)       9,742,729

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents        1,552,686       (175,677)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year             84,844          260,521

------------- --------------

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15        1,637,531            84,844

STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS for the year ended 31 December 2018
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1. General information
The Deposit Protection Corporation (the ‘Corporation’) was established by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on 
behalf of the Government of Zimbabwe to lessen the impact on the public when banks, building societies and 
other financial institutions become insolvent or collapse. 

The Corporation is incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe.

The financial statements are expressed in the United States of America dollars (“US$”).

2. Statement of compliance 
The Corporation’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, (IFRS) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, (IFRIC) 
interpretations. The financial statements are based on statutory records that are maintained under the historical 
cost convention. 

3. Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and 
liabilities that are stated at fair value. Significant details of the Corporation’s accounting policies are set out 
below and are consistent with those applied in the previous year, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the 
Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29).

Currency 
The financial statements are expressed in United States of America dollars (‘’USD’’) which was the presentation 
currency of the corporation for the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year the entity transacted using 
a combination of the United States Dollars (USD), bond notes and bond coins, electronic money and other 
foreign currencies. Acute shortage of USD cash and other foreign currencies in the country resulted in an 
increase in utilization of different modes of payment for goods and services such as settlement via the Real 
Time Gross Settlement (RTGS) system overseen by the Central Bank and mobile money platforms. There 
was a significant divergence in the purchasing power of USD cash, bond notes, bond coins, mobile money 
platforms and electronic money as the year progressed. 

This necessitated the Central Bank to separate bank balances into the Nostro Foreign Currency Accounts 
(Nostro FCA) and Real Time Gross Settlement Foreign Currency Accounts (RTGS FCA) with effect from 1 
October 2018 through Exchange Control directive RT120 of 2018. The parity between Nostro FCA and RTGS 
FCA was maintained to be 1:1 by the Central Bank until the issue of the 2019 first quarter monetary policy. 
However, the multi-tier pricing system, where a single product had different prices depending on the mode 
of payment, whether USD cash, RTGS Nostro, RTGS FCA, mobile money or bond notes, became more 
pronounced in the Zimbabwean economy. This was an  indication that values of Nostro FCA and RTGS FCA 
are not at par 
RTGS FCA and mobile money platforms were not legally recognized as currency during the year ended 31 

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  for the year ended 31 December 2018
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December 2018, however their substance of the economic phenomenon prevailing suggested that they were 
a form of a de facto local currency.

From October 2018, the underlying transactions affecting the corporation were denominated primarily in local 
currency. The de facto local currency thus became the functional currency of the corporation even though it 
had not been promulgated as a currency.

On 22 February 2019, an electronic currency called the RTGS dollar was introduced through Statutory 
Instrument 33 of 2019 (S.I 33/19) and the currency commenced trading at a rate of 2.5 to the USD. In addition, 
S.I 33/19 fixed the exchange rate between RTGS dollar and the USD at a rate of 1:1 for periods before the 
effective date. The rate of 1:1 is consistent with the rate mandated by the Central Bank at the time it issued 
the bond notes and coins as currency.  Although the functional currency of the entity changed from USD to the 
de facto local currency, it maintained USD as its presentation currency since the  de facto local currency had 
not been legally promulgated as a currency at year end. An exchange rate of 1:1 was used to translate the de 
facto local currency to USD in compliance with S.I 33/19. This constitutes a departure from the requirements 
of IAS 21 which requires the use of spot rates in applying translation procedures.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
In preparing the annual financial statements in terms of IFRS, management is required to make certain 
estimates and assumptions that may materially affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period 
and the related disclosures. The actual results often vary from these estimates due to the inherent uncertainty 
involved in making estimates and assumptions concerning future events. These estimates and judgments are 
based on historical experience, current and expected future economic conditions and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

As the estimates are reviewed on a regular basis, any changes to these accounting estimates are recognized 
in the period in which the estimate is revised, if it impacts on only the current period. If the revision of the 
estimate impacts on both the current and future periods, then the change in estimate is recognized in the 
current and future periods.

The following accounting policies have been identified as being particularly complex or involving subjective 
judgments or assessments:

 4.1 Provision for protection payments
The provision for protection payments represents the present value of the Directors best estimate of the 
future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Corporation’s obligations as set out in the 
Deposit Protection Corporation Act.  Management annually assesses the performance of the banks using the 
CAMELS rating system. The estimate of the exposure is based on the number of depositors of distressed 
institutions at the end of the year. Distressed banks on the Central banks watch list with a CAMELS rating of 
4 and above were provided for except for a government bank. The bank regularly gets government support to 
fund agriculture.

4.2 Provision for outstanding premiums and penalties
A provision of outstanding penalty interest dating back to 2013 was made against banks under judicial 
management and liquidation. 
4.3 Recognition of subrogation fees
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In terms of the DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 46, the Corporation shall be subrogated up to the amount paid 
to depositors of failed banks. The timing of the refund is dependent on the availability of cash from disposals 
of failed bank(s) assets and recoveries from the failed bank(s) debtors. The process can be protracted. In view 
of this timing uncertainty, subrogated income is not accrued but recognized on date of receipt. During the year 
subrogation income was recognized on receipt of funds.

4.4 Recognition of premium from troubled banks
The DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 28 provides that all contributory institutions including those under judicial 
management and curatorship are liable to contribute to the DPC Fund.  Management assesses on a quarterly 
basis the probability of recoverability of premiums from troubled banks and banks under judicial management 
and curatorship.

4.5 Determination of the functional currency
Critical accounting estimates and key sources of estimation uncertainty Determination of Functional Currency
In the determination of functional currency, the following factors were considered;
-The currency that mainly influences the sales prices of goods and services 
-The currency in which funds from financing activities (i.e. issuing debt and equity instruments) are generated.
-The currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.

The following was observed from an analysis of transactions in the final quarter of the year
 (i)Sales of prices and  goods were denominated predominantly in RTGS FCA. 
(ii)Funds from financing activities were denominated predominantly in RTGS FCA.

4.6 Translation of Functional Currency to Presentation Currency
According to ISA 21, when there is a purported change in functional currency within the operating environment 
of an entity, management should apply the prevailing market exchange rate at the date of change to arrive at 
the financially presented figures (‘presentation currency’). In this case management chose to comply with the 
provisions of the law through S.I 33/19 in presenting these financial statements. Management applied a rate 
of 1:1- a fixed exchange rate between the functional currency (‘de facto local currency’) and the presentation 
currency of USD for transactions and balances relating to the 2018 financial year as guided S.I 33/19.

Furthermore, the directors have performed a sensitivity analysis of how different exchange rates would impact 
the Corporation’s statement of financial position in note 23 to the financial statements. This confirms that had 
the local currency been translated to USD in accordance with IAS 21, elements in the statement of financial 
position would have been materially affected.

4.7 Hyperinflation Considerations
The corporation has assessed that the operating environment was not hyperinflationary at 31st December 
2018. The assessment of inflation as hyperinflation is a result of the functional currency of the entity which 
is not stable. The cumulative inflation has not yet exceeded 100% over the last 3 years. Management will 
continue to assess the operating environment on its hyperinflationary status.

5.  Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
A number of new standards or revised/amended standards are effective for annual periods 
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5.4 New, revised and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet mandatorily effective at the end of the
             reporting period and not yet adopted.

IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 
2019

Specifies how to recognize, measure, present and disclose 
leases. The standard provides a single lease accounting 
model, requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for 
all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the 
underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify 
leases as operating or finance with IFRS 16s approach to lessor 
accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor IAS 
17.

The Directors of the Corporation have assessed the amendments and new standards and do not believe that 
the adoption of these will have a material impact on the financial results or disclosures of the Corporation.
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018.

6. Significant accounting policies
    
6.1 Property, Vehicles & Equipment

Property, vehicles and equipment are initially recognized at cost price. Property, vehicles and equipment 
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Depreciation is provided for on the straight-line method over the expected useful life of the asset. There is no 
depreciation provided for on freehold land and capital work in progress. 
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to allocate the cost of each asset, to their residual values 
over their estimated useful lives as follows:
                                                                Useful 
Buildings                                       20 - 40 years
Furniture and fittings                          10 years
Computers and office equipment 4 years
Vehicles                                        3 - 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.

Impairment
An impairment review of property, vehicles and equipment is carried out when there is an indication that these 
may be impaired by comparing the carrying amount thereof to its recoverable amount. The Corporation’s 
operations as a whole constitute the smallest cash-generating unit. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair 
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not 
been adjusted

6.2  Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in the 
ordinary course of the Corporation’s activities. The Corporation recognises revenue when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific 
criteria have been met for each of the Corporation’s activities as described below. 

6.2.1 Premium income
Premium income is recognised in the accounting period in which it accrues. Premiums are received in arrears.

6.2.2 Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a receivable 
is impaired, the Corporation reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated 
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future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument and continues unwinding 
the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized using the original effective 
interest rate.

6.2.3 Subrogation income
Subrogation income is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the Corporation has an irrevocable right to receive funds 
during with considerable certainty. 

6.3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

6.4 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one 
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.
Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.

6.5 Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is 
material).

• 6.5.1 Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous 
contract is considered to exist where the Corporation has a contract under which unavoidable costs of meeting 
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.
6 Significant accounting policies (continued)

6.6 Leases
Assets held under a finance lease arrangement are capitalised as property, plant and equipment at the fair 
value of the leased asset at inception of the lease, or if lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments.  
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position.
Finance lease payments are apportioned between finance costs and the reduction in the lease obligation, 
using the effective interest method. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except 
where another systematic basis is more representative of the pattern in which economic benefits from leased 
assets are consumed. 
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6.7 Taxation
The Corporation is domiciled in Zimbabwe. Under the current laws of Zimbabwe there is no income, estate, 
corporation, capital gains or other taxes payable by the Corporation. This is with exception of value added tax 
(“VAT”) and Corporation’s employees Pay As You Earn (“PAYE”) which are due and payable when applicable.

6.8 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument in another entity. The Corporation’s financial instruments consist primarily 
of the following financial assets: non-current receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other 
receivables; other current financial assets; and the following financial liabilities: borrowings, trade 
and other payables, and certain derivative instruments.

Fair value
Where financial instruments are recognised at fair value, the instruments are measured at the amount 
for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties 
in an arm’s length transaction. Fair values have been determined as follows:
Where market prices are available, these have been used.
Where there are no market prices available, fair values have been determined using valuation 
techniques incorporating observable market inputs or discounting expected cash flows at market 
rates.

The fair value of the trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other 
payables approximates their carrying amount due to the short maturity period of these instruments. 
6 Significant accounting policies (continued)

6.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or 
financial liability and of allocating interest income or expense over the period of the instrument.

Effectively, this method determines the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments 
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, if appropriate, a shorter period, to 
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

Financial assets
The Corporation classifies financial assets into the following categories:
• At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
• Loans and receivable
• Held-to-maturity (HTM).
• Available-for-sale (AFS).

The classification of the financial assets is dependent on the purpose and characteristics of the 
particular financial assets and is determined at the date of initial recognition. Management reassesses 
the classification of financial assets on a bi-annual basis.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the asset is either held-for-trading or is a derivative 
that does not satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting or is designated at FVTPL. A financial asset 
is designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if this designation provides more useful information 
because:

• it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (i.e. an 
accounting mismatch); or

• the financial asset is part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, that is managed 
and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk/
investment management strategy, and information regarding this grouping is reported internally 
to key management on this basis.

In addition, if a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire contract can be 
designated at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are recognized at fair value. Any subsequent gains or losses are 
recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets classified as held-for-trading comprise the foreign forward exchange contracts 
which are not designated as hedges in terms of IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement.

6 Significant accounting policies (continued)
6.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Loans and receivables
Financial assets that are non-derivative with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Any 
subsequent impairment is included in the determination of other net income/expenditure.

Loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents with short-term maturities have 
been classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are considered as current if their 
maturity is within a year, otherwise they are reflected in non-current assets.

Held-to-maturity (HTM)
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the 
Corporation has an intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity.

These financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any 
subsequent impairment, where the carrying amount falls below the recoverable amount, is included 
in the determination of other net income/expenditure.
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Available-for-sale (AFS)
Other non-derivative financial assets are classified as AFS which are initially recognised at fair value. 
Any subsequent gains or losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, unless there 
is

 objective evidence and the fair value has declined below cost less accumulated impairments. On 
disposal or impairment of the financial asset, all cumulative unrecognised gains or losses, which 
were previously reflected in equity, are included in profit or loss for the period.

Impairment
Financial assets that are not held-for-trading or designated at FVTPL are assessed for objective 
evidence of impairment at the reporting date (e.g. evidence that the Corporation will not be able 
to collect all the amounts due according to the original terms of the receivable). If such evidence 
exists, the impairment for financial assets at amortised cost is measured as the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of these financial assets, with the exception of trade receivables, is reduced by 
the impairment. Trade receivables are reduced through an allowance account, with movements in 
the allowance account included in the determination of net income/expenditure.

If a decline in fair value has been recognized in equity in respect of an AFS instrument and there is 
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, then the cumulative loss recognized in equity is reversed 
from equity and reflected in profit or loss even if the financial asset has not been derecognized. 
An impairment loss recognized on an investment in an equity instrument classified as AFS is not 
reversed through profit or loss. However, for any other AFS instruments, if in a subsequent period 
the fair value increases and the increase can be objectively linked to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with the reversal 
reflected in profit or loss.

6 Significant accounting policies (continued)
6.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Classification between debt and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements 
and the definitions of a financial liability and equity instrument. 

Equity instruments
An equity instrument represents a contract that evidences a residual interest in the net assets of the 
Corporation after deducting its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Corporation are recorded 
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the liability is either incurred for trading or is 
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a derivative that does not satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting or is designated at FVTPL. A 
financial liability is designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if this designation provides more useful 
information because:
• it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (i.e. an 

accounting mismatch); or
• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, that is 

managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented 
risk/investment management strategy, and information regarding this grouping is reported 
internally to key management on this basis. In addition, if a contract contains one or more 
embedded derivatives, the entire contract can be designated at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized at fair value. Any subsequent gains or losses are 
recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are recorded initially at the fair value of the consideration received, which 
is cost net of any issue costs associated with the borrowing. These liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated taking 
into account any issue costs and any discount or premium on settlement.

Borrowings, obligations under finance leases and trade and other payables have been classified as 
other financial liabilities.  

6 Significant accounting policies (continued)
• 6.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Loan commitments
Loan commitments provided at below market 
• the amount of the obligation in terms of the contract as determined in accordance with IAS 37 

(Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets); or
• the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with 

IFRS 15 – Revenue.

• 6.9 Foreign currencies translations
The United States dollar (US$) is the functional currency of the Corporation. Foreign currency 
transactions are recorded at the spot rate of exchange on the transaction date. At the end of the 
period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates of 
exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value are 
translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of determining the fair value. Non-monetary items 
that are denominated in foreign currencies and measured at historical cost are not retranslated. 
Foreign exchange differences arising on monetary items are reflected in profit or loss except in 
limited circumstances.

• 6.10 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are charged to interest paid. When borrowings are utilized to fund qualifying capital 
expenditure, such borrowing costs are capitalized in the period in which the capital expenditure and 
related borrowing costs are incurred.
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6.11 Employee Benefits
6.11.1 Short-term employee benefits
Remuneration paid to employees in respect of services rendered during a reporting period is 
recognized as an expense in that reporting period. Accruals are made for accumulated leave and are 
measured at the amount that the Corporation expects to pay when the leave is used.

6.11.2 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are charged against income when the Corporation is demonstrably committed 
to terminating the employment of an employee before their normal retirement date.

6.11.3 Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans
Retirement, provident and pension fund contributions to defined contribution plans in respect of 
services rendered during a reporting period are recognised as an expense in that period.
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2018 2017
US$ US$

7. Investment income
Interest income: 2,486,105 2,529,791
Held to maturity investments 2,486,105 2,529,791

8. Other income
Interest on staff loans 61,300 39,091
Sundry income 3,758 186,827
Profit/Loss on disposal of assets       (3,741) 161
Recoveries from subrogation 1,982,810 299,371
Liquidation fees                                                                                                                                  739,559 216,821

2,783,685 742,271
9. Operating expenses

Included in profit or loss for the year are the following 
items:
Administration expenses:

- Utilities 38,521 34,090
- Cell phone charges and internet
  services

     43,804 40,661

- Other administration expenses 633,681 509,516
Staff costs (note 9.1) 2,407,186 2,337,196
Other expenses:

             - Board fees 72,900 59,200
             - Audit fees 20,320 18,500

             - Depreciation 329,462 200,112
             - Consultancy fees 29,678 10,946
             - Foreign travel 78,035 173,679
             - Subscriptions to professional 
                organizations

42,912 38,540

             - Repairs and maintenance                                                                                             64,278 46,902
             - Liquidation expenses 42,912 18,102

3,803,689 3,487,444
9.1 Staff costs

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 2,269,748 2,197,925
National Social Security Authority cost      21,593   21,342
Pension costs     115,845 117,929

2,407,186 2,337,196

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

10. Finance costs
                                                                 2018                  2017
                                                                  US$                    US$                                                                                                  

Finance lease charges                                    55,689                24,059
                                    -------------           -------------
                                                  55,689                24,059
                                               -------------           -------------

11. Pension fund 

Contributions are made to the following funds by both employees and the Corporation:

The Deposit Protection Corporation Pension Fund. 

The pension fund to which all permanent employees and the Corporation contribute to is a defined contribution 
plan which is administered by Old Mutual Zimbabwe.  This fund is subject to the Pension and Provident Funds 
Act (Chapter 24:09). Contributions by the Corporation amount to 12% and those by employees amount to 6% 
of pensionable emoluments.

National Social Security Authority 

The Corporation and its employees contribute to the National Social Security Authority scheme. This is a social 
security scheme which was promulgated under the National Social Security Authority Act (Chapter 17:04). The 
Corporation’s obligations under the scheme are limited to specific contribution legislated from time to time.

The Corporation’s contributions to both funds were:

                                                                                                                      2018               2017
                                                                                                                       US$                US$
             
Pension fund                                                                                                     115 845           117, 929
National Social Security Authority                                                                21,593               21, 342
                                                                                                               --------------         ------------
                                                                                                                    137, 438           139, 271
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Office Computer Furniture 
Year 
ended 31 
December 
2018

Vehicles equipment equipment and 
fittings

 Buildings Land Total

US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Carrying 
Amount at 1 
January 2018

430,485 90,155 83,002 73,773 1,125,377                         490,000 2,292,792

Transfers              
--

                  
-

                  
-

                 
-

                 - - -

Addition 516,950 23,834 46,781 22,326 1,166,563 500,000 2,276,454
Disposal      (238,095) (7,2226) (20,156) (3,412)                -               - (268,889)
Depreciation 
charge for 
2018

(197,494) (36,451) (44,914) (12,169) (38,433) - (329,462)

Disposal 
depreciation

198,141                2,454 15,859 3,394 - -                219,847

Net book 
value

709,987 72,766 80,572 83,911 2,253,507 990,000 4,190,743

                                                                                                                                

At 31 
December 
2018

180,054 262,408 160,229 2,448,950 990,000 5,031,668

Cost 990,027 (107,288) (181,837) (76,318) (195,444) - (840,926)
Accumulated 
depreciation                    

(280,039)       

Net book 
value

709,987 72,766 80,571 83,911 2,253,506 990,000 4,190,743

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018 

There is no impairment of assets required from an assessment performed at the reporting date. 

12        PROPERTY, VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018 

12        PROPERTY, VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

There is no impairment of assets required from an assessment performed at the reporting date. 

Office Computer Furniture Land and
Year ended 31 
December 2017

Vehicles equipment equipment and 
fittings

buildings Total

US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Carrying amount at 1 
January 2017

167,159 88,502 53,318 54,881 797,311 1,163,171

Transfers - - - - (290,000) -
Additions  355,128 33,768 62,237 28,568 650,756 1,330,457
Disposal - (297) (8,682) (1,368) - (10,347)
Depreciation charge for 
2017                                                                                                      

(91,802) (32,114) (34,109) (9,397) (32,690) (200,112)

Disposal depreciation - 296 8,238 1,089 - 9,623
Net book value 430,485 90,155 83,002 73,773 1,125,377 2,292,792

At 31 December 2017
Cost 711,171 163,446 235,783 141,315 1,282,387 3,024,102
Accumulated 
depreciation  

(280,686) (73,291) (152,781) (67,543) (157,011) (731,311)

Net book value 430,485 90,155 83,002 73,773 1,125,376 2,292,792
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018 

2018 2017
US$ US$

13. Financial assets
At 1 January 40,243,308 21,025,446
Additions 10,998,625 18,723,232
Accrued interest at 31 December 788,279 494,630 

52,030,212 40,243,308
                                  

Analysis of financial assets:

Held to maturity investments carried at 
amortized cost
Equity unit trusts (i)      - 1,994,025
Gross money market funds (ii)                                                               19,366,666 18,026,544 
Treasury bills and bonds (iii) 32,663,546 20,222,739

                 52,030,212 40,243,308
                                 

14. Trade and other receivables
2018 2017
US$ US$

Trade receivables 4,472,918 4,883,608
Other receivables 1,363,804 1,012,550
Impairment loss recognized (note 14.1) (1,755) (1,468,119)

5,834,967 4,428,039

(i) The Corporation held unit trusts in prior year through Old Mutual in an Equity Fund.
(ii) The Corporation holds unit trusts through Old Mutual in a Money Market Gross Fund. These have been measured at 
amortized cost
     at the reporting date.
(iii) The Corporation holds Treasury bills and bonds and these have been measured at cost on the reporting date.
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2018
US$

2017
US$

14.2 Age on impaired trade
        receivables
Less than 30 days                       - -
Between 31 – 90 days                       - -
Greater than 90 days - 1,468,119

- 1,468,119
                                  

2018 2017
US$ US$

15. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 105                          68
Cash at bank 1,637,426 84,777

1,637,531 84,844

16. Trade and other payables
Leave pay provision 86,951                     105,408
Other accruals 47,447                  30,372

                 134,243                135,780

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

14. Trade and other receivables (continued)

     2018
US$

 2017
US$

14.1 Movement in allowance for doubtful 
        debts
Balance at the beginning of the year                                                        -               1,468,119                 
Impairment losses recognized 1,755 -

Balance at the end of the year 1,755 1,468,119
In line with IFRS 9 an impairment allowance of 2% was made against a receivable that was owing for 
more than 180 days at year end.

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximate fair value.
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018

17. Finance lease liability                                                                  

2018 2017
US$ US$

Opening balance 88,951 -

New lease contracts                                                                                                      66,950 351,628
Repayments (151,122) (262, 676)
Present value of minimum lease payments 4,779 88,951

2018 2017
US$ US$

18. Provision for protection payments
Opening balance 4,060,862 5,257,895
Current year provision                                                                                 92,134 -            
Payments (371,661) (1,197,033)
Closing balance 3,781,336             4,060,862              

Finance lease for the purchase of vehicles were entered with a finance lease company. Lease contracts 
are for a maximum period of 12 months.
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Provision for protection payments (continued)

The provision for protection payments represents the present value of the Directors best estimate of the future 
outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Corporation’s obligations as set out in the Deposit 
Protection Corporation Act. Management annually assesses the performance of the banks using the CAMELS 
rating system. The estimate of the exposure is based on the number of depositors of distressed institutions at 
the end of the year. Distressed banks on the Reserve Bank Watch List with CAMELS rating of 4 and 5 were 
provided for except for government owned banks. The provision for protection payments is based on a listing 
of individual depositors from closed banks up to a maximum of US$500 per depositor. For troubled banks that 
were still operating after 30 June 2016, the provision is based on a cover level of $1 000.  

19. Related party transactions 

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

2018
US$

                     2017
US$         

Key management compensation shown below:

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 955,533 877,195
Defined contribution plan 40,206 46,840

995,739 924,035

The Corporation has provided several of its key management personnel with short-term loans at a rate of 
6%p.a. Further information has been set out below: 
                                                                                    2018                       2017
                                                                                                 US$                        US$
                        
Loans to key management                                                             269,678                  135,663
                              
20.  Financial instruments
 
20.1 Significant accounting policies

Details of significant accounting policies, including the recognition criteria, the basis for measurement and the 
basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each category of financial asset, financial 
liability and equity instrument are disclosed under the note in accounting policies.
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20.3 Interest rate risk
 

The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk because the Corporation borrows funds at both fixed 
and floating interest rates. 

The Corporation’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed 
in the liquidity risk management section of this note

 
20.4 Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to meet a financial commitment in any 
location or currency. This risk is minimized through the holding of cash balances and financial assets. 
In addition, detailed cash flow forecasts are regularly prepared and reviewed by management.  The 
cash needs of the Corporation are managed according to its requirements.
 

2018
US$

2017
US$

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 1,637,531 84,844
Gross money market funds carried at 
amortized cost                                        

19,366,666 18,026,544

Equity Funds - 1,994,025
Treasury bills and bonds 32,663,545 20,222,739
Loans and receivables                              5,836,723 4,428,039
          59,504,465 44,756,191
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 134,243 135,780
Finance lease liability 4,779 88,951

139,022 224,731

20.2 Categories of financial instruments
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

20. Financial instruments (continued)

20.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Corporation’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. 
The table has been compiled based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on 
the earliest date on which the Corporation can be required to repay the liability. The cash flows include 
both the principal and interest payments. 

20  Financial instruments (continued)

20.5 Credit risk

Potential concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of short term cash investments and accounts 
receivable. Credit risk arises from the risk that a counter party may default or not meet its obligations 
timeously. The Corporation minimizes credit risk by ensuring that counterparties are banking 
institutions of the highest quality, that appropriate credit limits are in place for each counter party and 
that short term cash investments are spread amongst a number of different counterparties. Banking 
counterparty limits are reviewed annually by the Board.

Weighted 
average 

Effective 
Interest 

Rate

Less than 
12

months 1 to 5 years +5 years Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Non derivative financial 
instruments
2018
Interest bearing borrowings 12%  4,779  88,951
Trade and other payables 134,243                -              - 135,780

                                                139,022 - - 224,731
                                                               

 
2017
Interest bearing borrowings 12% 88,951 - - 88,951
Trade and other payables n/a 135,780 - - 135,780
Demonetisation fund n/a - - - -

244,731 - - 224,731
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

     
The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit 
risk without taking into consideration any collateral provided:

Maximum credit risk
                                                                                                             2018                              2017
                                                                                                              US$                                US$

Financial assets and other credit exposures
Other financial assets                                                                  52,030,212        40,243,308
Trade and other receivables                                                       4,428,039          4,428,039
Cash and cash balance                                                                    1,637,531              84,844
                                                                                         ----------------                  ---------------
                                                                                            59,504,465         44,756,191

                               
 22. Going concern

The Directors have assessed the ability of the Corporation to continue operating as a going 
concern and believe that the preparation of these financial statements on a going concern basis 
is still appropriate. However, the Directors believe that under the current economic environment 
a continuous assessment of the ability of the Corporation to continue to operate as a going con-
cern will need to be performed to determine the continued appropriateness of the going concern 
assumption that has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Corporation’s current assets exceeded current liabilities by US$ 55 
582 352 (2017: US$ 40 470 598).

The Government (shareholder) injected $10 million in Treasury bills as capital to the entity in 
February 2017.

In the event that the Corporation is faced with a huge payout which is in excess of available 
funds, there are three options that can be pursued individually or collectively as follows:
(1) In terms of the DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 31, there is a provision to levy supplementary
     contributions from all banking institutions to fund the shortfall.
(2) In terms of the DPC Act, Second Schedule Paragraph 7, the Corporation has an ancillary 
     power to orrow moneys for the purposes of the DPC Fund.
(3) In a systemic crisis, that is, a situation where a number of large banks fail at the same time
     and the fund level is inadequate even after invoking (1) and (2) above, then funding will be 
     provided by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Development



- 70 -

DPC Annual Report 2018

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

Introduction of the RTGS Dollar
On the 22 February 2019, a Statutory Instrument 32 of 2019 (S.I 32/19), was issued as an amendment 
to the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe Act that introduced a new currency called the RTGS Dollar. An 
Exchange Control Directive RU 28 of 2019 was also issued on the same day which introduced an 
interbank exchange rate for the RTGS Dollar to the US$ as well as other existing currencies in the 
multi-currency regime. In addition, Statutory Instrument 33 of 2019 (S.I 33/19) was issued on 22 
February 2019. S.I 33/19 makes reference to the following matters among other key provisions: 

• That the RBZ has, with effect from 22 February 2019 (“effective date”) issued an electronic currency
  called the Real Time Gross Settlement (“RTGS”) dollar; 
• RTGS balances expressed in US$ immediately before 22 February 2019, shall from the effective   
  date  be deemed to be opening balances in RTGS dollar at par with the US$; 
• That the RTGS dollar shall be legal tender within Zimbabwe from the effective date; 
• For accounting and other purposes, all assets and liabilities that were valued and expressed in  
  US$ immediately before 22 February 2019 shall be deemed to be values in RTGS dollars at rate 
  of one-to-one to the USD; 
• That after the effective date any variance from the opening parity rate shall be determined from 
   time to time by the rate at which authorised dealers under the Exchange Control Act exchange 
   the RTGS dollar for the United States dollar on a willing-seller willing-buyer basis; and 
• That every enactment in which an amount is expressed in USD shall, on the and after effective 
  date be construed as reference to the RTGS dollar, at parity with the USD, that is to say, at a one-
  to-one rate.
. 
Based on the foregoing, and the assessment done by the Company, its functional currency has 
legally changed to RTGS Dollars  prospectively(2019 onwards.

23.1 Sensitivity Analysis of the Statement of Financial Position to market risk obtaining at 
year
The entity’s functional currency reflects the transactions, events , conditions under which the entity 
conducts its business .The functional currency does not change unless there is a change in the 
underlying nature of the transactions, relevant conditions and  events. Notwithstanding the legal 
framework  where the bond notes were at par with the United States Dollar, the conditions in the 
alternative markets reflected a significant change on the exchange rate  of the bond to the United 
States dollar. The Public Auditors and Accountants Board (PAAB) being the regulatory board in 
terms of chapter 27:12 (herein after referred to as the Act) issued guidelines on disclosures to 
provide users of financial statements with useful information for decision making assuming the 
application of different exchange rates to the elements disclosed in the financial statements as a 
way of assessing the impact of the exchange rate to the financial statements through a sensitivity 
analysis.

Key Assumptions
In preparing the sensitivity analysis  the company used  the rate of 2.5 to the United states dollar as 
announced when the interbank market was set up following monetary policy statements in February 
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2019.The company also used the exchange rate of 1USD:4RTGS dollar which in our view was 
widely believed to have been the prevailing rate in the alternative markets.The resultant foreign 
exchange difference was recognised in the sensitivity analysis.

Element

Monetary 

Assets/

Liabilities

Nostro 

USD

Monetary 

Assets/

Liabilities

Nostro 

RTGS

Monetary 

Assets/

Liabilities

Nostro 

USD

Monetary 

Assets/

Liabilities

Nostro 

RTGS

Total USD 

@ 1:1

Total Nostro 

USD @ 1:2.5

Total Nostro 

USD @ 1:4

ASSETS Note
Property and 

Equipment

12 - - 772,419 3,418,324 4,190,743 5,349,370.43 6,507,998.28

Held to maturity 

financial assets

13 - - - 52,030,212 52,030,212 52,030,212 52,030,212

Trade and other 

receivables

14a - - - 5,836,723 5,836,723 5,836,723 5,836,723

Cash and cash 

equivalents

15 7 1,637,524 - 1,637,524 3,275,055 1,637,524 1,637,552

                                

7

1,637,524 77,419 62,922,783 65,332,733 64 853 829 66,012,485

                                              
 EQUITY & 

LIABILITIES

-

Trade and other 

payables

16 7,862 126,381 - 126,381 260,624 126,381.00 126,381.00

Finance lease 

liability

17 - - - 4,779 4,779 4,779 4,779

Provision for 

protection 

payments

18 - - - 3,781,336 3,781,336 3,781,336 3,781,336

Assessed credit 

losses 

14b - - - 1,755 1,755 - -

7,862 126,381 - 3,914,251 4,048,494 126,381 126,381
EQUITY -
Accumulated fund - - - 59 634 

899

59,634,899 59,634,899 59,634,899

Reserves - - - 138 196 138,196 138,196 138,196
Accumulated 

losses

- - - - - - -

Foreign currency 
translation 
reserve - 
balancing figure

(7,855) 1,511,143 772,418.6 (764,563) 1,511,143.5 4,954,353.43 6,113,009.28

Total shareholder 

equity

- 1,511,143 772,418.57 59,008,532 61,284,239 64,727,448 65,886,104

(7,855)
Total equity & 

liabilities

7 1,637,524 772,419 62,922,783 65,332,733 64,853,829 66,012,485
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Comments
1. The ruling exchange rate from the alternative market at 31 December 2018 was 1USD:4RTGS 

Dollars.
2. The Corporation had US$7 in petty cash at 31 December 2018.
3. The property and equipment balance of US$772 419 is the net book balance at 31 December for 

the commercial building and land bought in 2012. properties that were bought later were priced 
at a USD premium.

4. The trade liability of US$7 862 (CHF7 989.44) was the subscription owing to the International 
Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) at 31 December 2019. The cross-exchange rate of 
1US$:0.98400 CHF was used.

5. The Corporation will have its vehicle fleet revalued for insurance purposes in May 2019 when the 
vehicle insurance policy becomes due for renewal. All land and buildings will also be revalued 
during 2019
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NOTES




